

FLEXNER, A.

Biographical

RIEFLER, W.

STEWART, W.

✓WARREN

MITRANY, D.

FRANKFURTER, F.

BAMBERGER, L.

BAMBERGER, E.

VEBLEN, O.

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS & POLITICS

Academic Organization

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Corporation

Interview with Flexner 11/3/55

1930-54
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS & POLITICS

Academic Organization

DIRECTOR

Administration

FLEXNER, A.

Biographical

MITRANY D.

✓ WARREN

STEWART, W.

RIEFLER, W.

See interview with Flexner, A. 11/2/55

1933

CLAY, SIR HENRY

Biographical

ZIMBALIST, B.

STEWART, W.

✓ WARREN

Flexner first asked Clay to accept appointment as economist. He couldn't leave Bank of England and suggested Stewart.

When Stewart came he insisted on Warren, too. Flexner said he didn't care whom he brought; he wanted Stewart. Told to B. Harle by Zimbalist recounting a conversation with Flexner.

Interview with B. Harle, 6/9/56

1934-39

INSTITUTE HISTORY

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

Institute History

Biographical

Quote from Hegel:

"It is the function of the idea to create the institution;
it is the function of the institution to destroy the idea."

Warren goes on to say that Flexner's idea has created an institution. "But I cannot tell you how concerned I am over the responsibility he has given us--to defend his idea against the institution it created and so prove Hegel wrong."

Stewart papers, I. A. S., S. E. F., 1934-39

1938-41

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organisation

PLENHER, A.

Biographical

STEWART, W.

✓ WARREN, R.

RIEPLER, W.

Trustees' action affecting Economics Faculty, 1938.

Filed in Vertical File under "S", School of Economics and Politics.

1938-41

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organisation

FLEMYER, A.

Biographical

STEWART, W.

✓ WARREN, R.

RIMPLER, W.

See Vertical file for notes on Trustees' minutes in Stewart-Warren appointments and budget adjustment.

Minutes Trustees, 4/7/38, 4/16/38, 10/10/38, 1/23/39, 5/22/39 to 5/19/41

1938

7/14

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

RIEFLER, WINFIELD W.

STEWART, WALTER

CLAY

✓WARREN

WOLMAN

Riefler to Flexner, July 14, 1938 where he tells about his trip to Geneva, etc.

Filed in Chronological file under 1938, 7/14.

D File, Riefler, Winfield W., 1934-39

1938

7/16

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

STEWART, WALTER W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN

BAMBERGER, LOUIS

FLEXNER, A.

AYDELOTTE, F.

Flexner to Aydelotte, July 16, 1938, in strictest confidence, enclosing a copy of a letter from Flexner to Bamberger. No mention, cautions Aydelotte, can be made of Stewart's acceptance until the Board has approved the news, until Stewart, himself, has given him leave to release the news, "but I want you to know privately what has been accomplished and to share my enjoyment of a step that I think will prove momentous in the history of the Institute and in the development of economic thinking."

The enclosed letter from Flexner to Bamberger of the same date goes as follows: He informs of Stewart's cable, "My answer

is yes--wholeheartedly and without reservation, and I am delighted to have made the decision."

Flexner continued, "I have not forgotten or lost sight of your own skepticism on the subject of economics, but after seven years of thinking and consultation it is my conviction that we have, in the field of economics, greater opportunity and greater need than in anything which we have done or can do. Do not understand me to mean that I lose sight of the human factors involved or that I count upon early concrete and useful results, but experience and experiment on a vast scale have been going on ever since the beginning of the war, and even long before that, and no group anywhere has had such an opportunity to study this experience as we can provide in Princeton, though, as I explained to you, two institutions animated by the same purpose have been created in England within the last two years."

He then delivers a little homily to Bamberger on the development of economics, mathematics, physics, biology, and psychology, and medicine in recent world history, and continues:

"After long years of waiting we have secured a leader who is universally regarded by those most competent to judge as the ablest person in either Europe or America. I believe in Stewart, in his wisdom, in his judgment, in his modesty, and in his absolute devotion to the search for truth. Tempting offers have been made to him in these recent months. Were a man less great might have yielded, he has put them all aside. When his acceptance is announced--for the time being it is of course confidential--it will be greeted by men of affairs as well as economists as marking the opening of a new era, for we shall have established in America such a center for economic investigation and research as exists in mathematics and physics and medicine, and such as does not exist in economics under quite as good conditions in any other country in the world.

"I write this letter with a good deal of emotion. I realize that I am no longer young, and it has not been easy for me to wait, but I realize also that he must start with the best--with a man who, in the field of economics, means something of what Einstein and Veblen and Woyl mean in the field of

mathematics. That we have now accomplished by being patient and being satisfied with nothing short of the best."

A File, IAS (T)

1936

7/25

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organisation

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN

MAASS

LEIDESDORF

FLEXNER

Maass to Flexner acknowledging Flexner's letter of July 16 to Leidesdorf congratulating him on "Stewart's wholehearted and unqualified acceptance." Entering in new field-possibilities limitless, will reflect great credit on Institute.

D, Maass, H. E., 1930-38

1938

7/25
8/24
8/27

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

STEWART, WALTER

Biographical

✓WARREN, ROBERT B.

Maass to Fleener:

"My heartiest congratulations to you for what you have started in economics, which I know will be followed by heartier ones when the first results become known."

Maass to Fleener:

"You cannot imagine how eager I am to learn when you are going to announce Mr. Stewart's appointment, and also the scope of his plans for the Department of Economics."

Fleener to Maass:

"I am glad that you approve of my suggestion in reference to the Einstein bust and Miss Bamberger's offer of a plaque of Mr. Fuld."

"I believe it would be good judgment for you and Larson to see Mr. Bamberger and

Mrs. Fuld before the committee meets so that they may not have the feeling that they are faced with an accomplished fact.

" Stewart and one of his associates, Mr. Warren, spent two days with me this week. Stewart's enthusiasm over the prospects was most noticeable. His appointment can be announced immediately after it is ratified by the Board at the meeting on October 10. He has in mind now asking Mr. Robert R. Warren, a Harvard man, to join a group with himself and Riefler. Warren is really first-rate, a quiet, patient, thoughtful worker with a wide acquaintance with finance in this country and Europe. The department will of course develop slowly as we find men and money for it, but I have practical assurance of outside funds based on the acceptance of men of the type whom we have already secured."

Source: IAS Trustees - Mass, Herbert H.

1938

8/24
8/28

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

RIEFLER, WINFIELD W.

Biographical

STEWART, WARREN

✓ WARREN

WOLMAN

Flexner to Riefler, August 24, 1938.

Stewart and Warren have been visiting Flexner at Magnetawan.
"Warren's mind is moving slowly, but our long talks have convinced me
that his intellect is a first-rate instrument."

Riefler to Flexner, August 26, 1938.

"Stacy May told me the other day that he understands that Stewart,
Warren and Wolman are starting out on another trip through the south
in September. This seems to me to confirm my earlier conclusion that
they form a natural group, which should not be broken up.

D File, Riefler, Winfield W., 1934-1939

1038

10/4

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN, R. B.

Stewart to Flexner.

Discussing his reasons for staying away from Board meeting at which he will be nominated--will be ready for work at beginning of spring semester 1/17/39.

Wants to resign as Trustee but Flexner wants him to continue. However, he must resign as Vice-Chairman therewith. While he has not talked with Mr. Warren thinks he will want same effective date.

D, Stewart

1938

10/9

VEBLEN, O.

Biographical

STEWART, W. W.

✓ WARREN

PLEXNER, A.

See Veblen's remarks welcoming Stewart - Warren to Faculty at Board meeting. Gives color to theory his and Flexner's differences arose in January, 1939, in a fight over something else and Veblen used discontent of Earle with the new appointments.

Trustees' Minutes, 10/9/38

1938

20/10

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

STEWART, WALTER

ASHEN, EARLE

RISFLER, W. W.

DEES, H.

VENLON, O.

Academic Organization
Relations W.O.A.I.
Biographical

Report (Director) and recommendation for appoints of Stewart and Risfler

Tr. Min. - 20/10/38 - pp. 4/13

1938

10/14
10/18

GENERAL

Public Relations

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

STEWART, WALTER W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

MAASS, HERBERT H.

FLEXNER, ABRAHAM

See Maass to Flexner October 14, 1938 indicating full knowledge of permanence of appointments of Stewart and Warren.

Note complete friendliness in offer to pay Larson's expenses.

See Chrono.

1936

10/14
10/16

INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED STUDY
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS
✓WARREN, ROBERT
STEWART, WALTER
EINSTEIN, ALBERT

Public Relations
Facilities
Biographical

Maass to Flexner:

"The article in this morning's Times concerning the new building of the Institute was certainly both interesting and attractive. I confess, however, that I was somewhat surprised that you took occasion to announce the appointment of Professors Stewart and Warren at the same time, for I was impressed by the fact that news concerning the building rather surpassed the importance of these appointments. However, I suppose you felt that this was the best opportunity for announcing the appointments.

"When last I saw you I forgot to mention that Mr. Benjamin called upon me one day last week in reference to the proposed gift of the Einstein bust. He explained the genesis of the idea to me completely and also advised that contributions had been slow in coming in and that the Committee was considerably short of the amount which it hoped to raise. In the course of discussion I learned that practically no contributions have been received from any of the trustees of the Institute and I am therefore writing to advise you that Leidesdorf and I are each willing to contribute \$100.00, and that I am sure you can get some contributions from other members of the Board of Trustees, probably Mr. Houghton, Edgar Bamberger, Mr. Hardin and perhaps some others, for you would know better than I who to ask. Will you communicate with those who are in a position to give, or do you prefer that I do so? At the same time will you advise Mr. Benjamin of Leidesdorf's and my contribution.

"What is contained in this paragraph is intended entirely for your own consumption, but it is one of the little things that is giving me such annoyance. When the Committee on Building selected Mr. Larson as architect we held a meeting with him in which we arranged his fee at the flat sum of \$25,000.00, the first \$18,000.00 to be payable in monthly installments of \$1,500.00 each, and the remaining \$7,000.00 when the building was completed and accepted. It was understood that out-of-pocket disbursements such as telephone calls, traveling expenses, etc., were to be billed at cost. Recently one of the requisitions was sent to Mr. Bamberger with an accompanying check for signature and yesterday Mr. Bamberger called me on the telephone and criticized the agreement to pay disbursements, saying that he felt these should be borne by Mr. Larson. The contract having been made, I cannot undertake to change it at this juncture, so Leidesdorf and I have asked Mr. Larson in the future to omit these charges from his bills to the Institute and bill them separately and Leidesdorf and I will pay them personally. The whole thing cannot amount to more than a few hundred dollars and I do not think an issue should be made of it."

Flexner to Maass;

"I have yours of October 14 in reference to the announcement regarding the building and the appointments of Stewart and Warren. It was impossible to do otherwise, since the newspapers were already in possession of the fact that Stewart had accepted an appointment,

and the best that I could do was to get the Associated Press and the New York Times to hold back with the announcement until the announcement regarding the building was made. It seemed to me important not to allow the impression to get abroad in academic circles that we were going ahead with buildings rather than with men. By combining them we have shown that our policy is unchanged.

"In regard to the Einstein bust, I myself made a contribution, but I hesitate to ask any member of the Board of Trustees to do so, though I agree with you that there are those who might be interested in doing so and who could do so without serious damage to their assets.

"Larson is tremendously pleased that he is going to have something like Einstein's bust and probably several plaques with which to initiate some simple but entirely fitting ornamentation.

"I do not think that you and Mr. Leidesdorf should pay Larson's out-of-pocket disbursements. They ought to come either out of the sum that Mr. Babberger places at your disposal - I myself would have no hesitation in continuing along that line - or they should come out of petty cash. Under no circumstances am I willing that you and Mr. Leidesdorf should pay them. ~~xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~~ So when these memoranda come in I want you to send them to me and I will see that they are paid by the Institute as they ought to be. This is undoubtedly another little instance of the interference of our friend, and I myself have no hesitation whatsoever in overruling him."

Source: IAS Trustees - Name Herbert H.

1939

3/15

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

✓ WARREN

Biographical

EINSTEIN, A.

Unsent philosophical memo from Warren to Einstein on whether there is a faculty at I. A. S.

Filed in Chronological file under 1939, 3/15.

Handwritten: Made sure AS 1/2/56 #3

Photostat of a copy lent to Beatrice M. Stern by W. W. Stewart

1939

10/5

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

RESEARCH

Government Relations

✓ WARREN, R. B.

Biographical

FLEXNER, A.

Warren to Flexner explaining his project for R. B. in editing reports on studies of monetary policy for Senator Wagner Chairman Building & Cur. Com. (with Donald Woodward). Warren considered it compatible with duties as professor Institute. Warren's work since spring and hopefully finished by October.

D. Warren

1939

11/27

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

RINFLER, W. W.

✓ WARREN

STEWART

SABLE, E. H.

Aydelotte to Stewart, November 27, 1939, asking him to consult Riefler and Warren individually or collectively as to whom they would suggest to represent the School of Economics and Politics "on this committee." Aydelotte is sending a similar request to Marie to ask his advice and thinks it useless to try to reach Nitrary. Suggests Stewart reach Riefler and Warren by phone and confer with him on it.

Since J Aydelotte is reaching the members of the School of Mathematics and the School of Humanistic Studies that week, he

wants the suggestion as promptly as possible from the
School of Economics and Politics. There is no memorandum in
the file as to who was suggested.

S-15 (SER, Faculty Meetings)

1939

December

WARREN, R. W.

Biographical

Two memoranda from Warren on nature of research in
economics -- philosophical and psychological.

D, Rockefeller Foundation, 1939-40

1939

12/18

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

ACADEMIC ORGANIZATION

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

BIOGRAPHICAL

See letter from Warren to Rockefeller Foundation outlining his own separate and distinct projects. (See Earle papers correspondence with Mitrany showing Rockefeller Foundation's concern that I. A. S. economists were not coordinating on economic program).

D, Rockefeller Foundation

1940

3/11

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

WARREN

Biographical

Warren to Aydelotte suggesting that IAS underwrite research and translation into economic works of Meritt in Central Europe. Not commercially feasible, to break down barriers to thought.

A, 10/18/56, Miscellaneous #2

1940

7/29 7/27

FLEXNER, A.

Biographical

AYDELOTTE, P.

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

STEWART, W. W.

Flexner to Aydelotte, July 27, 1940.

"Have you read Bob Warren's three lectures given at McGill University, and published by the Oxford press, in a little volume called The State in Society? If not, read them; they are masterpieces of scholarship, insight and understanding. I have always leaned heavily upon Stewart's judgment, and it was Riefler who insisted upon our getting Stewart and Stewart who suggested Warren. These three men cannot be matched in this or any other country, and these, with Von Neumann, Weyl, Einstein, Meritt and a few others, are the backbone of the Institute."

1941-1949

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

✓WARREN

Biographical

ROCKEFELLER (SOCIAL SCIENCE
RESEARCH COUNCIL)

Foundations

Project was undertaken by the Social Science Research Council on \$250,000 granted by ~~the~~ the Rockefeller Foundation December 4, 1940. To be expended \$85,000 1941, \$65,000 1942, \$50,000 1943, \$50,000 1944. In addition a sum of \$50,000 to be matched dollar for dollar to be expended after fiscal 1943 and after fiscal 1944 if matched. Members of the Committee should be appointed for annual terms and the staff of the Committee should be appointed by the Council with the approval of the Committee. Committee should keep minutes and transmit them to the Council, etc.

The Committee consisted of the following in 1941:
Edwin F. Gay, Arthur H. Cole, Herbert Heaton, ~~Max~~
Harold Innis, Edgar A. J. Johnson and Simon Kuznets, Earle J.
Hamilton and R. B. Warren. The group of economic historians
who recommended the program consisted of some of those and others.

Warren.

On November 9, 1940, Warren wrote a very assiduous comment on the notes of the conference which the program was formulated and Kutznets' comments on the program. He arrived at "a definite conclusion.// There being no such thing as economics, there is no such thing as economic history. There are people who are interested in the economic aspects of society in general, and people who are interested in the economic aspects of history..."

Three people skam in the intial group stood out very strongly because they were more talkative--Heaton, Kuznets and Nef. Warren was reminded of Dr. Flexner whose own method "was personal." He believed Flexner would use the personal method here and suggested that if Dr. Willits wants to invest some money, he should invest it in one of the three or some other individual since none of the three obviously would be able to work together.

"In my opinion, the approach employed has already demonstrated, not exactly its futility but its marginal futility.

Continuing this approach will produce something elaborate, pretentious, and expensive; but I do not believe it will produce anything worthwhile.

"The present design seems under the influence of the National Bureau, and the little I know of the National Bureau persuades me that it is a design to be avoided. Whatever good has come from the Bureau has been merely that it afforded a device (and I think a clumsy and costly device) for projecting three individuals--Mitchell, Wolman and Riefler..."

On January 23, 1941 Warren accepted an invitation to join the Committee extending its original membership by his addition and that of Harold Innis.

March 3, 1941, Arthur H. Cole who was really the Chairman of the Committee set down in a memorandum to the members suggested program:

(1) First to accumulate a record of all current activities going forward in economic history in the United States and to ~~xxxxxxx~~ codify it. (This was after subcommittees had

been established.

(2) to Plan research in a given area will require the whole subject to be broken down into topics. To determine the mode of operation not as localized, geographically scattered or assembly of a consultative committee.

(3) Then to estimate costs in terms of number of workers, salaries, and so forth.

(3) Keep the survey of work going forward in the broad field of economic history and this will take travel.~~far~~

(4) Submit vouchers of your travel.

(5) The next meeting (4)

While the Committee was still seeking to outline its territory, Warren wrote Innis as follows: wonders whether there is such a thing as economic history. That is the trouble with the Committee, probably. There are: (a) political historians

who acknowledge that economic facts influence political action, and (b) economists who regard history as their laboratory or proving ground illustrating the operation of economic principles or theories under conditions considered as affording a recognizable test and (c) pure historians; that is, persons of a detective or reportorial type of mind who are interested in assembling and noticing factual information as it is discoverable.

He classifies the Marxists and Henry Georges' Progress and Poverty as examples of the third group. Innis' reprint of an article called "Price System" is an excellent example of group b.

Thinks the Committee could take one of the three approaches, but only one. He eliminated a because he thinks the Committee limited by its own characteristics in that he thinks none of its members has developed any such comprehensive philosophy of economic determinism. Group b requires pioneering in one of the common economic ~~concepts~~ concepts the price system, ~~land as capital~~ land as capital, rent, the distribution

of income, national income. Perhaps best taken for granted and get down to facts. There is a real need for it, but he doesn't think the Committee is inclined toward it.

Economic History

On March 24 or 25, 1943, the Committee had a meeting. This is the gist of Warren's own report of it: Three topics mostly occupied the meeting, Bray Hammond is writing his own banking history of the United States. He appeared before the Committee and discussed it. (2) Johnson submitted a brief outline of a book he is starting. It is in the nature of the historical critique of economic factors that have influenced legislation. (3) The state of the subsidized studies. By and large these are not going well. Warren's own undertaking with McClurkin, graduate student at Pennsylvania, writing on Pre-Colonial history of banking, fizzled out after an expenditure of \$500 when McClurkin was offered a job in Washington and took it. Heath's project ran two years and cost \$2,000 with little or no text and Heath wants more money. In other cases the writers are said to be immature. In short, a general tone of discouragement prevailed. Except for Hammand, nothing that could be called new was undertaken.

Indecisive discussions as to sponsoring manuscripts prepared by initiative outside the Committee. This was opposed as involving a possible reading task on the Committee, but neither rejected nor accepted. One manuscript is more or less tentatively accepted.

Innis reverted to a proposal for reorienting the whole approach of the Committee that is sponsoring studies which would ~~ex~~ subject economic theory to historical test, an ideal Warren advanced two years ago. It got nowhere.

"As I see it after two years of ~~yy~~ search the Committee has not succeeded in uncovering much promising personnel. In some cases likely men have been absorbed by Washington. It may be that the Committee has been deficient in leadership, but I believe the fault lies elsewhere; I can't locate it myself.

In a ~~xxxx~~ sense the most tangible result of the two years has been the creation of the Journal of Economic History, which has been self-sustaining. Credit for this goes almost wholly

to Johnson.

He continues with these remarks: I am inclined to think the whole approach is on too wide a front. I believe that something could be done with Innis' suggestion of ~~ix~~ testing an economic concept by historical examples, or (b) by definite encouragement of regionalism--that is to say by creating centers of regional economic history in a few universities-- perhaps three or four." He hesitates to criticize the Committee. Individually it is capable and three members: Cole, Johnson and Heaton have worked energetically. It has been the more than cautions in its appropriations he thinks to date less than \$25,000. At the current rate the grant will expire with most of the fund unspent. Nevertheless, the products will be inferior to the expenditure. I question this whole concept of research in which a "project" costing from \$3,000 to \$5,000 cash outlay not all from the Committee produces a book whose edition runs to 500 copies with no assurance that not even that many readers. "I am sure there is ~~basically~~ something basically wrong with the whole thing, but I can't tell precisely what is wrong and still less what would set it right." (Committee on Economic History Correspondence)

The grants were evidently renewed but the total effect or outcome is left in question by the files. Warren was active in his correspondence with Arthur Cole, Librarian at Harvard and Chairman of the Committee on Research in Economic History under the auspices of the Social Science Research Council whose members in 1947 included Cole, Earle J. Hamilton, Herbert Heaton, John G. B. Hutchins, Harold A. Innis, Leland H. Jenks, Edward C. Kirkland, Frederick C. Lane, and Warren.

Warren's correspondence throughout evidences a brilliant, critical faculty which at long last Cole seemed to feel that he was difficult to persuade, for on November 30, 1948 Warren writes to Cole as follows: "I am sorry to have fallen into the category of an agnostic, for I do not feel that I am one. It seems to me that I said nothing about economic history that could not be said of history. Gibbins said that history was little but 'the record of the crimes, follies and misfortunes' of mankind, and I proceeded in his own words to record 'the triumph of religion and barbarism'. That was enough to make the history to end histories. Actually he was the

father of \times history in the western world. But his children (mostly) rejected his premisis and wrote history in all sorts of ways.

Warren then proceeds to describe economic history as he sees it--in Malthusian terms. "That economic history of the record of the struggle between happiness and misery--the happiness being represented by the gifts of God (the application of reason to resources), and the misery to original sin (i. e., selfishness as used by Adam/ Smith in Moral Philosophy." This leads him to a study of institutionalism (the institution being one incarnation of the world to happiness) and what seems to be the inevitable drift the reasoned institution into a vested interest concerned with its own perpetuation, rather than its original end. This, of course, leads to the familiar phrase of Haggel's--it is the function of the idea to create the institution; and that the institution to destroy the idea. So to me economic history is the history of ideas (e. g. entrepreneurship) and of the institutionalism of an idea (e. g. The corporation is the institutionalizing of entrepreneurship), and the eventual

destruction of the idea, as we see it being worked out today through the familiar processes of cartilization and nationalization--leading (to paraphrase given) to the triumph of social justice and misery." [This seems a little mad.]

Perhaps the key to Warren's mood and approach is in an unsent letter addressed by him to Cole on March 31, 1949. Cole has ~~xxx~~ expressed appreciation of "an attempt at perspective," and Warren says "...I am a complete pessimist. For some time most of my extra-curricular reading has been in the area of 'decline and fall' type, with its focus on the idiological ~~xx~~ turmoil that accompanied the political disintegration of the third century."

He goes on to express/ regret that the ~~sk~~ article came out because now he would rearrange it and state it differently and he says, "When and If I ever get through my 'deline and fall' phase, I shall try a 'Phoenix' phase."

About the work of the Social Science Research Council for research in the economic history of the United States, Fosdick

says: "The Foundation has contributed substantially not only to the general budget of the Social Science Research Council, but also to the wide range of special projects of research in which its committees have guided including, among others, the following: (10 special projects listed including economic history).

"This type of support is illustrated by the grant of \$300,000 which the Foundation made to the Social Science Research Council in 1940 for research in the economic history of the United States. For genuine understanding of the causes, course, and significance of the processes of ~~xxxx~~ change in the economy of the country, it is important to study the long flow of social and economic ~~trans~~ events, so that light may be thrown upon gradually developing structural and secular modifications. In 10 years of work, this activity has resulted in substantial progress in establishing economic history as a recognized discipline; a group of competent younger scholars has been developed in this neglected field; and some authoritative and influential volumes have been published." (Fosdick, Story of the Rockefeller Foundation, pp. 214-215)

Stewart Files on Committee on Research in Economic History.

1941

1/27
2/24

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

STEWART, W. W.

RIEPLER, W.

✓ WARREN, R.

Report of the Director, 1/27/41.

Filed in Vertical File under "E" for School of Economics
and Politics.

S-4

1941

3/6

LIBRARY

Facilities

✓ WARREN, R. W.

Biographical

~~File~~. Memorandum from Warren to Stewart in regard to the library.
Filed under Chronological 1941, 3/6.

S I.A.S. Economics & Politics, 1940

1942

9/28

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

GENERAL

Government Relations

FLEXNER, W. W.

Biographical

STEWART, W.C.

✓ WARREN, S.

Flexner to Ayscotte.

XXXXXXXXXX

Warns him not to let these men accept salary from government.
It would make them responsible for policies.

FA Confidential Files, March 7, 1957

3/22

ROCKEFELLER

BENEFITS

HERZFELD

LOWE

STEWART

MITRANY

ALEXANDER

✓ WARREN

PANOFSKY

WEITZMANN, KURT

SWARZENSKI

Foundations

Academic Personnel

Biographical

See Chronological File, 1943, 3/22, for Minutes of Executive Committee, March 22, 1943, in regard to the above topics.

Executive Committee Minutes, March 22, 1943

1943

6/8

BENEFITS

Personnel

BENEFITS

Academic Personnel

LOWE, E. A.

Biographical

HERZFELD

ALEXANDER

PANOFSKY

✓WARREN

STEWART

MITRANY

See special action on benefits for academic personnel
and ~~non~~ personnel.. pp. 1-3.

Trustees' Minutes, 6/8/43

1943

7/1
7/2

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

BEVERIDGE, SIR WILLIAM

Biographical

STEWART, W. W.

✓ WARREN, R.

For membership of day's conference on full employment with
Beveridge as main guest, see Stewart file.

See Warren's comments 7/8. (sour).

W. W. S., Beveridge, Sir. William

1943

11/26

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

MEMBERS

Academic Personnel

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN, E.

In a report on economics Stewart says he rarely makes trips to Washington though called for advice at times.

Both he and Warren have continued their reading over a wider range than economics, including history, political theory, philosophy, because they believe economics is "too narrowly defined."

D. Stewart

1944

March and April

GENERAL (AMERICAN CIVILIZATION STUDY)

Academic Activities

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

GROGGENHEIM

Foundations

✓ WARREN, R.

Biographical

BLACKMUR

Copy of memoranda on the project.

Another memorandum--Warren to Aydelette on arrangements for
study or seminar April 10, 1944.

PA (Elsa Jenkins) 3/19/47, File No. 2)

1944

10/11

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES

RIEFLER, W. W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN

STEWART

AYDELOTTE, P.

In his projected report which was never delivered, Aydelotte outlined a project for research in the fundamentals of American civilization which he says properly belongs in the School of Humanistic Studies, but because of the interests of Stewart, Warren, and Marie, the School of Economics is greatly interested.

He has been discussing it since 1941 with Professor Louis S. Wright of the Huntington Library and one of the editors of the Journal of the History of Ideas, and later with Professor Selwain of Harvard, Miss Marjorie Nicholson

of Columbia, Dr. Joseph H. Willits of the Rockefeller Foundation, Professor Gilbert Chinard and President Dodge of Princeton. (See page 20 of the draft for a description of the project which proposes to trace the strands of legal, political, social, economic, philosophical and religious aspects of American life from the beginning.) Adolotte suggests that fundamental research in various aspects of the field will enable the Institute to make a contribution of peculiar value to postwar scholarship and education in the United States. He says the interest of scholars moving in this direction is demonstrated by the subjects chosen by candidates for fellowships of the Guggenheim Foundation as well as by the subjects touching this field undertaken by certain members of the Institute. The newly organized program in American civilization in Princeton University evidences it also. Professor Blackmur at Harvard, an ex-Guggenheim Fellow and an instructor in Princeton, is working on Henry Adams, and will spend the academic year 1944-1945 at the Institute on a stipend in the School of Economics. "Lack of funds for stipends and the preoccupation of scholars with war work has prevented an

from making anything more than a very quiet and modest start
but we hope that this program will go forward with
accelerated momentum a year hence."

A (Attie) File, Report of the Director, October, 1944

1944

11/20

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

BENEFITS

DIRECTOR

Administration

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

EINSTEIN, A.

WARREN, W.

EARLE, E.M.

MORSE, M.

VON NEUMANN, J.

Digest of Minutes of Faculty Meeting, 11/20/44
from File V-1

See PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION - Academic Personnel

1944

12/12
12/18

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

GENERAL

Government Relations

✓ WARREN, ROBERT B.

Biographical

John G. Erhardt, Director of Office of the Foreign Service, Department of State, Washington to Aydelotte December 12, 1944, requesting that Warren come to serve on the mission to Austria for the government.

Aydelotte to members of the Executive Committee, December 18, 1944, telling them of the request and enclosing a copy of Erhardt's letter, asking them to vote by mail.

Letters filed in Chronological File under 1944, 12/12.

Hardin Miscellaneous

1944

12/12
12/18

WARREN

Aydelotte to Trustees transmitting request of Erhardt,
Director Foreign Service, State Department, asking for a
year of Warren's time for government mission to Austria on
reconstruction problems.

JRH, Miscellaneous Papers

1945

1/5

GENERAL

Government Relations

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

✓ WARREN, R.

Biographical

Copy of letter from John G. Erhardt, Acting Assistant Secretary, Department of State, Washington, to Aydelotte, January 5, 1945.

Copy of letter attached to Chronological File under 1945, 1/5.

D. Warren

1945

1/19

WORLD WAR II

Government Relations

WARREN,

Biographical

Warren given leave-of-absence to work for State Department.

Tr. Min. - 1/19/45 - p. 1

1945

2/23

SCHOOL OF
ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

STEWART, W.W.
✓ WARREN, EARL
MITCHELL, J.

Biographical

Memo from W. W. Stewart to Dr. Aydelotte on:

EXPIRATION OF MEMBERSHIP OF JONATHAN MITCHELL

"The second draft of his manuscript is still incomplete but within a month or two it should be in shape to show to a publisher. Both Warren and myself have seen the manuscript through several phases and therefore do not trust our own judgment as to quality. We are agreed, however, that the Institute is not justified in making any further extension of Mr. Mitchell's membership."

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

VINER, J.

Biographical

MORISON

EARLE

RIEFLER

✓ WARREN

STEWART

See Earle to Aydelotte regarding conference with W. W. S.,
W. W. R., R. B. W. and suggested deferral of invitation to Viner
in favor of immediate invitation to Morison.

Earle, I. A. S., 1944-5, General Correspondence

1946

9/26

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

SEMINAR ON MONETARY POLICY

Academic Procedures

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

RIEFLER

✓ WARREN

GOLDENWEISER

Meeting of four to plan for seminars 1947-48; subject European financial, fiscal and monetary problems. Two meetings per month instead of one as in 1946-47. Lunch and afternoon. Personnel selected in program outlined.

Decided to have a full-time assistant to organize material on current foreign developments, charts etc. Vera Lutz mentioned--(no provision for preparation of reports or papers for publication? Apparently not) Warren kept notes of discussions, sometimes with the papers presented by individual

numbers and sometimes without. In two cases in 1946 papers were submitted & revised after discussion and before publication. In others some may have been true. Warren's notes show 9 meetings seminar 11/12/46 to 5/12/47.

Papers regarding this frontfile are attached to Chronological Copy of this Memorandum and filed under 1946, 9/26.

S. E. P. Seminar Monetary Policy 1947-48

1946

October

RESEARCH

Government Relations

ECONOMICS

Academic ~~XXXX~~ Activities

✓ WARREN, E.

Biographical

HOORSE, E. G.

Warren was asked to help E. G. Hourse, Chairman Council of Economic Advisers to President U. S. to spend October-December aiding in establishing the new Council and its work. Hourse thanked Aydelotte effusively October 22, 1946. Agreement signed ~~xxxxx~~ October 28, 1946 by which C. E. A. reimbursed Institute by Warren's salary, less expenses. Term extended to June 30, 1947 by supplementary agreement.

D. Warren

1946

10/18

GENERAL

Government Relations

✓ WARREN, RB

Biographical

Prof. Warren requested leave of absence from Oct. 15, 1946 to Dec. 31, 1956 to assist Dr. Edwin Nourse, Chairman of the Council of Economic Advisers to the President. in organizing and starting his bureau. This was closely related to the work Warren was doing at IAS. Warren granted leave at full salary on condition that he accept any remuneration offered him and deduct this from his salary, on a no gain, no loss principle.

Tr. Min. 10/18/46 pp. 4-5

1946

11/20

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

GENERAL

Finance

✓ WARREN, ROBERT S.

Biographical

Copy of a handwritten letter from Warren to Aydelette received November 20, 1946 (written on yellow lined paper). There is a note in Warren's handwriting at the top to show to Dr. Stewart.

"Dear Dr. Aydelette:

"I do not consider that any security in the world has that degree of safety or promise that attached generally to property in the 19th century. As fewer and fewer persons actually own property, the sense of property has weakened. It is, however, still relatively strong in America, and we must take it as we find it.

"In general, between bonds and stocks, stocks represent the more conservative use of funds. In a literal sense, bonds have not been conservative since the gold standard was

abandoned. That is, in that period, the value of money has fallen as well as the yield on bonds. The annual decline in the value of the principal has exceeded the income, so that the bond holder has in recent years been subjected to a continuous capital levy.

"The stock holder has fared better. He has had a higher current return, and by the rise in stocks, retained a greater part of his principal. Contrary to usual belief, he has not done too well during the war period. By CPA and taxation, corporate earnings were given a ceiling approximately the average of 1935-9. As a result the ratio of net earnings to sales fell in half, as sales nearly doubled. As capital assets were not written up to correspond to ~~the~~ replacement costs, the ratio of earnings to "net ~~worth~~" (the ratio commonly used) was fairly satisfactory, and gave an illusion of high profits. Actually few corporations made much money during the war, and a large number actually lost. Their accumulated cash funds (working capital, maintenance, and depreciation

reserves) which they were unable to use currently fell 30 or 40 per cent in value. This unconsidered loss is now obliging them to incur debt or dilute their equities.

"With the removal of O. P. A., the tendency is for corporations to relate earnings to sales, as a norm; and sooner or later the market is likely to capitalize these earnings by revaluing the fixed assets at something nearer replacement costs. This has not yet occurred, although the tendency of earnings to rise after O. P. A. is distinct enough. If the economy is to continue as a going concern, we may expect that sooner or later net earnings will rise 50 per cent or more above the average of the 1935-39-45 period. Supposing money rates to remain as they are, we might expect an increase of 50 to 100 per cent in average common stocks. That is, a common stock currently paying \$5 might be expected to pay \$6 or \$8, and move from 100 to say 140-60. As this reasoning is entirely related to the price level, it applies only to the securities having a product priced in the market; that is, not still subject to arbitrary controls.

"There are strong reasons for doubting that this is a good time to buy. Many persons are extremely apprehensive of a recession or depression in 1947. On the other hand, current prices are relatively modest against current earnings, and strong companies could probably weather some decline in business without entirely passing their dividends.

"Three specific hazards are:

"(1) The evil of the sellers' market. This will make some serious problems in 1947.

"(2) Organized labor has assumed great economic power without accepting economic or social responsibility. A similar development in Germany 30 years ago illustrates the hazard; as does the current experiment in England.

"(3) This country is not yet used to a militarized economy in times of so-called peace. The tensions of the past year show no signs of moderating; they are likely to become even more tense. Peace is not in our vocabulary.

"Nevertheless, I am still of the opinion that common
stocks are, on the whole, preferable to bonds, both for yield
and ~~for~~ safety of principal. There will be weak markets
between now and the year end that will offer good chances.

"Cordially

"Robert Warren"

D. Warren

1947

2/18

GENERAL

Government Relations

✓WARREN, ROBERT B.

Biographical

The arrangement which has been in force allowing Professor Robert B. Warren to give a certain amount of his time to the Council of Economic Advisors to the President was continued until June 30, 1947. No change made in salary. The per diem which he receives from the Government paid over to the Institute minus necessary traveling expenses from Princeton to Washington.

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes, Feb. 18, 1947

1947

4/30

SOCIAL SCIENCES

Academic Activities

PHILOSOPHY

✓ WARREN, R.

Biographical

Warren Memorandum, "Toward a Social Philosophy."

A File - (On shelf among "No Date" files--entitled "Institute")

1947

10/4
10/6
10/15

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

MORRIS

Biographical

STEWART

✓ WARREN

AYDELOTT

On nomination of Morris to fill Nitensy's professorship.

A, 10/18/56, SEP

1948

6/11

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations WQAI

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

✓ WARREN, R. B.

BIOGRAPHICAL

GOLDENWEISER

Stanby E. Howard, Chairman Economic and Social Institute
Princeton to Oppenheimer thanking him for Warren's taking
graduate students in Fiscal Policy. When Warren became ill
at end of term Goldenweiser took his place. Grateful.

D, Warren

1949-1950

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH

Foundations

RIPLEY, W. W.

Biographical

✓ WARREN, R.

Executive Director, N. B. E. R. to Oppenheimer, April 28, 1949, transmitting resolution N. B. E. R. on the resignation of Riefler at 1949 meeting as Director. He served from 1936 to 1942 by appointment of the American Statistical Association, resigning to become Minister to the Court of St. James. Nominated by the I. A. S. in 1945 on his return, and resigned at the end of his five-year term in 1950. Served as member of the Committee on Research in Finance, as Chairman of the Technical Committee on Corporate Bond Research, and advised frequently members of the staff on the financial research. "His active participation in this way in the work of the National Bureau has been a major influence in much of the National Bureau's work, especially in the studies in finance. The leadership that he gave to the planning and early development of the Financial

Research Program and to the execution of the many studies that have resulted from it to date stands out as an exceptional contribution to economic research."

February, 1950, on request of the N. B. E. R. and with consent of Stewart, Warren was appointed Director. Warren was nominated by the Institute for membership on the Board of Directors of the N. B. E. R.

D, National Bureau of Economic Research

1949

12/16

BENEFITS

Academic Personnel

✓ WARREN, ROBERT B.

Biographical

Oppenheimer to Warren, December 16, 1949.

At the November 15, 1949 meeting of the Board of the Executive Committee, a resolution was adopted operative as of July 1, 1950: the minimum total pension of present full Institute professors should be \$6,000, and the obligation of the Institute is to provide the difference between this amount under T. I. A. S. and amount decided as the minimum. The additional payments are to be covered in the ordinary budget. Warren is informed that under the terms of the resolution the policy which he holds under T.I.A.A. will be supplemented by the Institute to bring the total to \$6000 a year. Provisions for the support of the wife in the event of his death are left to the option of the professor.

D, Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association 1947-

1950

WARREN, ROBERT

Biographical

STEWART, W. W.

W. W. Stewart's article on Warren and quality. Obit.

Book shelves Box

MEMBERS

Publications

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

Biographical

DOUGLAS, LEWIS W.

~~STEBBINS, HENRY E.~~

Henry E. Stebbins, first Secretary to the American Embassy in London to Mrs. Leary, Secretary IAS Trustees.

"Ambassador Douglas has asked if you have additional copies of Robert Warren's Money and Sovereignty which was issued as a reprint in 1943. He would like to have any number up to 20, and will be happy to send his check to cover the cost of them."

D File, Lewis W. Douglas

1955

12/12

POLICIES (1, 2)	administration
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (1, 2, 3)	Academic Personnel
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS (3)	Academic Organization
TRUSTERS (1, 2)	Corporation
VEBLEN (interview)	Biographical
AYDELOTTE (3)	
DOUGLAS, LEWIS (3)	
FLEXNER, A. (1, 2)	
✓ WARREN (2)	
STEWART (2)	

Interview with Professor Veblen, December 12, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under Veblen Interviews.

1955

12/16

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organisation

FLOWER, J.

Biographical

EARLE, E. K.

STEWART, W.

✓ WARREN, R.

Interview with Mrs. Edward Earle, December 16, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Mrs. Edward Earle, 12/16/55

1955
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

BENEFITS

WOLMAN, LEO

STEWART, W.

WARREN
WARREN, W.

12/21

Academic Organisation

Academic Personnel

Biographical

Interview with Leo Wolman, December 21, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Leo Wolman, December 21, 1955.

1955

12/27

GENERAL

Academic Organization

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

VON NEUMANN

Biographical

FLENNER, A.

STEWART, W. W.

✓ WASSER

Interview with Dr. von Neumann, December 27, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Dr. von Neumann, 12/27/55

1955

12/31

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

RIEFLER, W.

Biographical

FLEXNER, A.

✓ WARDEN, R.

STEWART, W.

Interview with Winfield Riefler by telephone 12/31/55.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Winfield Riefler by telephone 12/31/55.

1956

1/9

GOLDMAN, HENRY

Biographical

RIEPLER, W.

~~WARREN~~

STEWART

FLENNER, A.

HARLE, E. M.

Interview with Professor Goldman, January 9, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Professor Goldman, January 9, 1956

1956

1/30

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organisation

ROCHESTER

Foundations

TRUSTEES

Corporation

STEWART, W.W.

Biographical

BIRPLER, W.

VEBLEN, G.

HENEFELD, H.

OPPENHEIMER, R.

STRAUSS, I.

LEWIS, WILMARTH

FRANKFURTER, F.

WARREN, R.

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, January 30, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Professor Stewart, 1/30/56

1956

2/16

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

STEWART, WALTER W.

Biographical

BIEFLER, WINFIELD W.

✓ WARREN

PLEKPER, A.

OPPENHEIMER, J. R.

BARLE, E. H.

Interview with Professor Stewart, February 16, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Stewart Interviews.

Interview with Professor Stewart, 2/16/56

126

6/6

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

TEACHING

Academic Procedures

RESEARCH

PRINCETON

Relations WPAI

LEAGUE OF NATIONS

Government Relations

HOWARD, S. E.

Biographies 1

PLEKNER, A.

✓ WARREN, ROBERT

VINER, JACOB

EINSTEIN, ALBERT

Interview with Professor S. E. Howard, Princeton
University, June 6, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Howard Interviews.

1956

6/6

GENERAL
ECONOMICS
PHILOSOPHY
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY
POLITICS
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
QUOGENSISM
VINER, J.
PLEISER, A.
SIMPSON, W. W.
STEWART, WARREN
✓ WARREN, ROBERT
VESLEY, C.
WINTHROP, ALBERT
WARLE, EDWARD H.
PROFESSORS

Academic Organization
Academic Activities

Relations WQAI
Administration
Academic Personnel
Foundations
Biographical

Academic Personnel

Interview with Jacob Viner, June 6, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Viner Interviews.

Interview with Viner, 6/6/56

1956

6/21

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY (8, 9, 10)

HARVARD UNIVERSITY (1)

MATHEMATICS (2, 7, 14)

E. G. P. (5, 6)

APPOINTMENTS (2, 3, 4, 5)

SALARIES (3)

FACULTY (10, 11)

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS (5, 9, 14, 15)

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES (14)

JOHNS HOPKINS (7, 8)

DIRECTOR (10, 11)

TRUSTEES (11)

RESEARCH (13)

MORSE (1, 5, 8, 10)

BIRKHOFF (1, 4)

WHITNEY (2)

STEWART (2, 3)

FLEXNER (3, 7, 8)

GODEL (3, 5)

MAYER, WALTHER (3)

SIEGEL (5)

BIGELOW (5, 6)

ELIOT, T. S. (7)

STRAUSS (10)

EARLE (10)

BOREL (15)

Relations WCAI

Academic Activities

Academic Personnel

Academic Organization

Educational Institutions

Administration

Corporation

Academic Procedures

Biographical

VEBLEN (1, 2, 4, 5, 8, 13)

DODDS (2)

✓ WARREN (2, 3)

VON NEUMANN (3, 5, 6)

PLAZCEK (3)

WIENER, NORBERT (4, 6)

WEYL (5, 8)

EINSTEIN (6, 8, 11, 12, 16)

VINER (9, 10)

AYDELOTTE (10, 11)

OPPENHEIMER (15)

Interview with
Morse 6/21/56.

Filed in
Vertical File
under Morse
Interviews.

1956

7/16

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS
PROFESSORS
MEMBERS
FACULTY
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
ECONOMICS
HARVARD
GERT ORIENTAL LIBRARY
PRINCETON
GENERAL
OPPENHEIMER
PEROUSSON
FOYNSIE
BLIET
PLACER
KENNAN
DYSON
STEWART
VINER
ALEXANDER

SIEPLER
✓ WARREN
MAYER
GODEL
BARLE
DOUGLAS
STRAUSS
FRANKL

Academic Organisation

Academic Personnel

Academic Activities

Educational Institutions

Facilities

Relations NSAI

Publications

Biographical

Interview with Robert Oppenheimer, July 16, 1956.
Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

9/25

ECONOMICS (P. 1, 4, 5, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16)
DIRECTOR (P. 6)
SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (P. 6, 7)
PRINCETON (P. 7, 8, 11)
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (P. 9, 13)
POLICIES (P. 12)
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (P. 6, 7, 15, 16)
ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION (P. 16, 18)
STEWART (P. 1, 5, 13, 14)
FRANKFURTER (P. 2, 5, 9, 17)
CLAY (P. 4)
RIEPLER (P. 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15)
WOLMAN (P. 4, 17)
VINER (P. 5, 8)
AYDELOTTE (P. 6)
VEBIEN (P. 1, 16)
STRAUS (P. 7)
PANOFSEKY (P. 7)
SCHROEDINGER (P. 7, 8)
OPPENHEIMER (P. 9, 17)
✓WARREN (P. 10, 11, 16)
BUCHANAN, NORMAN (P. 11)
FEIS (P. 13)

Academic Activities
Administration
Academic Organization
Relations WOI
Academic Personnel
Administration
Facilities
Foundations
Biographical

Interview with Mr. Stewart, September 25, 1956.
Filed under Stewart Interviews in Vertical File.

1956

10/24

DIRECTOR
JOHNS HOPKINS
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS
CHINESE ORIENTAL LIBRARY
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
INSTITUTE HISTORY
PRINCETON
FLEXNER, A.
LEIBSDORF
BLUESTONE
MAASS
VEBLEN
HARDIN
VON NEUMANN
ALEXANDER
DODS
MOSEY
AYDLOTT
✓ WARREN
STEWART

Administration
Educational Institutions
Facilities
F
Academic Personnel
Institute History
Relations WDAI
Biographical

Interview with Abraham Flexner, 10/24/56.
Filed in Vertical File under Flexner interviews.

Interview with Flexner, 10/24/56

1957

3/13

ECONOMICS (pp. 2, 6, 7)	Academic Activities
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS (1, 2)	Academic Organization
SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (4, 6)	
SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES (6)	
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY (3, 4, 5, 6, 7)	Relations WOI
PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (5)	Academic Personnel
POLICIES (3, 5, 6)	Administration
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (SITE) (6)	Facilities
WOODWARD (7)	Biographical
FLEXNER (1, 4, 5, 7)	
FRANKFURTER (1)	
MITRANY (1)	
MARSCHAK (1)	
RIEFLER (1, 2)	
VINER (2, 7)	
EARLE (2, 3, 6)	
JONES, THOMAS (3)	
✓WARREN (3)	
STEWART (3)	
AYDELOTTE (5)	
OPPENHEIMER (6)	
BAILEY (8)	

Interview with Sir Llewellyn Woodward, March 13, 1957.

Filed in Vertical File under Woodward Interviews.

1957

5/3

BENEFITS (1, 2, 3)

SALARIES (1)

FACULTY (20)

TRUSTEES (2, 3)

DIRECTOR (2, 3)

ECONOMICS (4, 5, 6, 7)

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS (4, 5, 6, 7) Academic Organisation

SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (5)

WOLMAN (1, 2, 4, 7, 8)

AYDELOTTE (1, 2, 3, 8)

DE TOLNAY (1, 2, 3)

PANOFSKY (1, 2, 3)

EARLE (2)

VEBLEN (2, 5)

MOE (2)

PLEXNER (2, 3, 8)

EINSTEIN (3)

CLAY (7)

VINER (6)

✓ WARREN (6)

BAMBERGER (3, 5)

STEWART (4, 6, 7, 8)

RIEFLER (4, 5, 7)

MAASS (5)

OPPENHEIMER (5)

Academic Personnel

Corporation

Administration

Academic Activities

Academic Organisation

Biographical

Interview with Wolman, May 3, 1957.

Filed in Vertical File under
Wolman Interviews.